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POLI TZ, Chief Judge:”’

Juan A. Magnone, convicted on his guilty plea of drug-
trafficking offenses, appeals the denial of his notion for relief
under 28 U. S.C. § 2255. For the reasons assigned, we affirmin

part, vacate in part, and renand.

“Local Rule 47.5 provides: "The publication of opinions that
have no precedential value and nerely decide particul ar cases on
the basis of well-settled principles of |aw inposes needless
expense on the public and burdens on the legal profession.™
Pursuant to that Rule, the Court has determ ned that this opinion
shoul d not be publi shed.



Backgr ound

On Novenber 16, 1988 Magnone was indicted for conspiracy to
possess cocaine with intent to distribute in violation of 21 U S. C
8§ 846. The follow ng February another indictnment arising froma
separate drug operation charged Magnone with aiding and abetting
aviation snuggling in violation of 18 US C §8 2 and 19 U S. C
8§ 1590(a), and conspiracy to inport, possess, and distribute
mari huana in violation of 21 U S.C. 88 841(a)(1), 846, 952, 960,
and 963. Magnone entered guilty pleas to the cocai ne and avi ation
smuggl i ng charges, in exchange for which the governnent agreed to
di sm ss the mari huana i nportati on charge and not oppose a two- poi nt
of fense | evel reduction for acceptance of personal responsibility
under U . S.S.G § 3El. 1(a).

Because t he Sent enci ng Gui del i nes puni sh both the cocai ne and
avi ation snuggling! viol ati ons under section 2D1.12? by reference to
the anounts of contraband involved, section 3Dl1.2(d) required

grouping of the offenses for the purpose of offense |Ievel

. The trial court found that section 2D1.4 governed
sentencing on the aviation snuggling count. In reaching this
result, the trial court first noted that section 2X2.1 punishes
ai ding and abetting by reference to the penalty for the underlying
of f ense. As the Sentencing QGuidelines contain no provision for
avi ation snuggling, section 2X5.1 required application of the nost
anal ogous guideline -- in this case, section 2Dl.4 because the
smuggl i ng operation involved a controll ed substance.

2 At the time of Magnone's sentencing, section 2D1.4
puni shed inchoate drug inportation and distribution offenses as
t hough conpl et ed, incorporating the penalties provided by
section 2D1.1. The Sentencing Conmi ssion has since deleted

section 2D1. 4, and now puni shes the offenses fornerly there treated
directly under section 2D1.1



cal cul ati on. Thus, wunder section 3Dl1.3(b), the district court
cal cul ated Magnone's base offense level at 26 by applying
section 2D1.1 to the aggregate anount of contraband involved in
both operations.? Assessnent of a four-point offense |evel
i ncrease for | eadership rol e under section 3Bl1.1(a),* and deni al of
t he two-point reduction for acceptance of personal responsibility,
resulted in a total offense level of 30. The trial court inposed
concurrent 110-nonth i nprisonnent and t hr ee-year supervi sed rel ease
ternms, a $3,000 fine, and the statutory assessnents. Magnone
failed to perfect a tinely direct appeal and the district court
deni ed | eave to appeal out of tine.

Magnone then filed the instant notion for post conviction
relief under 28 U S.C. § 2255, claimng ineffective assistance of

counsel ;% sentencing on the basis of wunreliable and erroneous

3 The mari huana and cocai ne offenses invol ved 540 pounds
and 300 grans of contraband, respectively. The drug equival ency
t abl e equat ed t hese anmounts to 304. 944 grans of heroin, yielding an
of fense | evel of 26 under section 2D1.1(c)(9).

4 The court inposed this enhancenent on the basis of
information in the PSR identifying Magnone as the supplier in the
cocaine offense, and as the leader of a six-person crimnal
organi zation in the mari huana of f ense.

5 Magnone alleged that his attorney | abored under a
conflict of interest; failed to nake an i ndependent investigation
of or present mtigating evidence of his acceptance of persona
responsibility or leadershiproleinthe offense; failed to provide
a copy of the PSR, or object under Fed. R CimP. 32(c)(3)(A) to the
probation departnent's failure to do so until mnutes before
sentencing; failed to contest the enhancenent assessed for
| eadership role; failed adequately to explain the charges | evel ed
against him and failed to file a tinely notice of appeal in
di sregard of a request to do so.



information in the PSR concerning his |eadership role in the
of fense and acceptance of personal responsibility; failure of the
trial court to provide a copy of the PSR before sentencing as
required by Fed. R CimP. 32(c)(3)(A); and i ncorrect application of
the sentencing guidelines by the district court. Accepting the
recommendation of a magistrate judge, the district court denied

relief without a hearing.® Magnone tinely appeal ed.

Anal ysi s
On appeal, Magnone chall enges the district court's denial of
habeas corpus relief on several grounds w thout an evidentiary
hearing. The district court may di spose of a section 2255 notion
W thout an evidentiary hearing only if the notion asserts clains
not admtting of relief or plainly refuted by the record.” W
revi ew such dispositions only for abuse of discretion.?

Magnone first challenges the district court's rejection

6 The magi strate judge treated Magnone's notion as relating
only to his conviction on the Novenber 1988 indictnment. Neither
party chall enges this characterization on appeal and we therefore
do not consider its propriety.

! 28 U.S.C. 8§ 2255 ("Unless the nmotion and the files and
records of the case concl usively showthat the prisoner is entitled
tonorelief, the court shall . . . grant a pronpt hearing thereon,
determ ne the issues and nake findings of fact and concl usi ons of
laww th respect thereto."); United States v. Barthol onew, 974 F. 2d
39 (5th Cr. 1992) (citing United States v. Auten, 632 F.2d 478
(5th Cir. 1980)); United States v. Green, 882 F.2d 999 (5th Cir.
1989) .

8 Bar t hol onew.



w thout a hearing of his ineffective assistance of counsel clains.
In order to obtain relief for ineffective assistance of counsel, a
petitioner nust establish both deficient performance and
prejudice.® Proof of attorney perfornmance outside "the w de range

of reasonabl e prof essional assistance," overcom ng a presunption of
adequacy, satisfies the performance requirenent.?° Defi ci ent
performance prejudi ces the defendant only where "counsel's errors
were so serious as to deprive the defendant of a fair trial, a
trial whose result is reliable. "

Conflict of Interest

Magnone clains that because a governnent agent and
confidential informant recomended and hired his attorney for him
his attorney | abored under a conflict of interest, thereby denying
him effective assistance of counsel. Conflict of interest
al | egations support an ineffective assistance claimonly where the
petitioner shows that his attorney actively represented conflicting
i nterests, and that the «conflict adversely affected his

performance. > \WWere a petitioner nmakes this showing, we wll

o Lockhart v. Fretwell, 113 S.Ct. 838 (1993) (citing
Strickland v. Wshington, 466 U S. 668 (1984)). Habeas corpus
petitioners seeking relief on this basis bear the burden of
denonstrating both of these elenents. Burnett v. Collins, 982 F. 2d
922 (5th Cr. 1993).

10 Strickland, 466 U. S. at 689.

1 Lockhart, 113 S. Ct. (quoting Strickland).

12 Burger v. Kenp, 483 U. S. 776, 783 (1987) (citing
Strickland; Cuyler v. Sullivan, 446 U S. 335 (1980)); Young V.

5



presune prejudice. Here, although Magnone alleged a vague
connection between his attorney and persons of potentially adverse
interest, he did not allege the required active representation of
those interests. The district court properly denied relief on
this claimwthout an evidentiary hearing.?®

Counsel's Perfornmance at Sentenci ng

Magnone further clains as ineffective assistance of counsel
his attorney's failure to: (1) provide hima copy of the PSR, as
required by Fed. R CGrimP. 32 or object tothetrial court's failure
to do so; (2) investigate the accuracy of information in the PSR,
(3) present mtigating evidence relating to his role in the
of fense; and (4) object to the four-point offense |evel increase
under section 3Bl.1(a). He alleges with specificity inaccuracies

in the PSR regarding his role in the aviation snmuggling offense

Herring, 938 F.2d 543 (5th Gir. 1991).

13 Strickl and; Young.

14 Furt her, Magnone's nunerous clains of deficient attorney
performance do not al one suffice as an all egati on of adverse effect
on performance produced by a conflict of interest. See Koch v.

Puckett, 907 F.2d 524 (5th Gr. 1990).

15 In his briefs to this court Magnone clainms that his
attorney al so represented a cooperating codefendant. If true, this
al l egation suggests the possibility that Magnone's attorney
actively represented conflicting interests. Magnone failed to
bring this allegation to the attention of the district court; we
may not now consider it. United States v. Smth, 915 F. 2d 959 (5th
Cr. 1990).



which proper review and investigation would have reveal ed.®
Magnone t hus contends that his attorney's deficiencies contributed
to the i nproper assessnent of a four-point offense |evel increase
for a | eadership role.

The district court found that, because WMagnone all eged
i naccuracies in the PSRrelating solely to the aviation smuggling
offense, he had failed to allege prejudice with regard to the
cocai ne conviction. The record belies this analysis; in assessing
t he four-point upward adjustnent for | eadership role in the cocaine
of fense the district court relied on Magnone's | eadership role in
t he avi ation smuggling offense.!® Magnone's allegations regarding

his attorney's performance neet the deficiency prong of

16 Additionally, Magnone's district court filings identify
W tnesses whose testinony he clainms would substantiate his
al | egations of inaccuracy.

17 Not wi t hst andi ng his sworn statenents at the guilty plea
proceedi ng, Magnone further clains that investigation would have
revealed that he was not the supplier in the cocaine offense as
all eged in the PSR

18 Under section 3Bl.1(a), sentencing courts may assess a
four-1level upward adjustnent only for | eadership role in "crimnal
activity that involved five or nore participants or was ot herw se
extensive." The PSR indicates involvenent of only four people in
the cocai ne offense. Further, a single transaction involving 300
grans of cocaine does not qualify that offense as "extensive"
crimnal activity. Conpare, e.qg., United States v. Stouffer, 1993
W 71072 (5th Cr. Mar. 16, 1993) (district court designation as
"extensive" wunder section 3Bl.1(a) of schene to defraud 2000
investors of at least $11 mllion not clearly erroneous); United
States v. Pierce, 893 F.2d 669 (5th Cr. 1990) (drug trafficking
of fense invol ving several shipnments of cocaine fromCalifornia to
Texas properly considered "extensive" under section 3B1.1). Thus,
Magnone's | eadership role in that offense could not al one support
a four-level upward adjustnent.




Strickland. ' The inaccuracies which Magnone all eges as flow ng
fromhis attorney's shortcom ngs, if proven, mght well constitute
prejudi ce under Strickland. As the record does not concl usively
resolve this claim it should not have been dism ssed w thout an
evidentiary hearing.

Failure to File Tinely Notice of Appea

Magnone al so clains that his attorney's failure, in disregard
of a direct request, to file atinely notice of appeal anounted to
i neffective assistance of counsel. Conpromsing a client's right
to appeal a crimnal conviction constitutes deficient performance
under Strickland. W presune prejudice in such an instance.? The
record does not refute this allegation which, if true, would admt
of habeas corpus relief. The district court should not have
dism ssed this claimwthout an evidentiary hearing.

Fed. RCrimP. 32(c)(3)(A)

Magnone next chal l enges the district court's denial of relief
on his claimthat he did not receive a copy of the PSR as required

by Fed. R CrimP. 32(c)(3)(A).? He clainms that he was not given a

19 Bart hol omew (attorney's failure to comply with
Fed. R &rimP. 32 requirenent that counsel and defendant read and
review PSR prior to sentencing is inadequate performance under
Strickl and).

20 See United States v. G pson, 985 F.2d 212 (5th Cir.
1993).

21 Rule 32(c)(3)(A) requires disclosure of the PSR to both
the defendanat and his counsel at Ileast ten days prior to
sentenci ng, subject to three exceptions not apparently relevant in
this case. Magnone does not dispute that his attorney received a
copy of the PSRin a tinely manner.

8



copy of the PSR until nonents before the sentencing hearing. 22
Magnone contends that, as a result, he neither objected to nor
presented evidence rebutting critical factual i haccur aci es
t herein. 2

A cl ai munder Rul e 32 which the defendant coul d have presented
on direct appeal (or through a notion under fornmer Fed. R CrimP
35) provides no basis for postconviction relief.? |n this case,
however, Magnone lists his attorney's failure to urge a Rule 32
objection at trial, to review the PSR wwth him and to file a
tinmely notice of appeal as requested. Magnone further alleges the
exi stence of evidence proving that the PSR inaccurately depicted
his role in the aviation snuggling operation. These allegations,
if proven, would bring Magnone's conplaint within the conpass of
section 2255, and would adnmit of relief.? This claim also, should

not have been dism ssed without an evidentiary hearing.

22 We note that the sentencing transcript reflects no reply
by Magnone to the court's inquiry concerning his tinely recei pt and
review of the PSR In addition, Magnone apparently signed a

st at enent acknow edgi ng recei pt of the PSR on July 7, 1989 -- the
date of his sentencing hearing.

23 The district court erroneously relied on a character-
ization of this claimas directed solely at the cocai ne conviction
in disposing of the Rule 32(c)(3)(A) challenge.

24 Bart hol omew; United States v. Prince, 868 F.2d 1379 (5th
Cir. 1989).

25 Bar t hol onew.



Application of Section 3El.1(a)

Magnone chal | enges t he sentenci ng court's deni al of an of fense
| evel reduction for acceptance of personal responsibility under
section 3El.1(a). Such clains, where the petitioner could have
raised them on direct appeal, do not admt of habeas corpus
relief.?® Assunming arguendo that this claimfalls within the anbit
of section 2255, it lacks nerit. Magnone argues that the court
denied this reduction on the basis of an erroneous finding that he
continued his involvenent in the aviation snmuggling case while on
bond in the cocai ne prosecution. Wil e under oath at his plea
proceedi ng, however, Magnone admtted participation during l|ate
January 1989 in the aviation snuggling operation. The record
pl ai nly refutes Magnone's contention, and fully supports the deni al
of an offense level reduction under section 3El.1(a).? The
district court properly disposed of this claim wthout an
evidentiary hearing.

Remai ni ng d ai ns

We decline to consider clainms which Magnone raises for the

first tinme on appeal .?8

26 United States v. Perez, 952 F.2d 908 (5th Cr. 1992).

27 See United States v. Sherbak, 950 F.2d 1095 (5th Cir.
1992) (district court findings with regard to defendant's
acceptance of personal responsibility reviewable only against
clearly erroneous standard).

28 Smith. For the first tinme on appeal, Mignone chal |l enges
t he knowi ng and vol untary character of his plea and cl ains that the
district court inproperly sentenced himnore harshly than it did
his crimnal associates; the plea colloquy did not conply with

10



Concl usi on

Magnone cl ai ns i neffective assi stance of counsel and viol ati on
of Fed. R CrimP. 32 which, if proven, would admt of habeas corpus
relief. We therefore VACATE the judgnent with regard to those
clains and REMAND for further proceedings. In connection
therewith, the district court may w sh to consi der appoi ntnent of
counsel for Magnone. In all other respects, the judgnent of the

district court is AFFl RVED

Fed. RCrimP. 11; the district court sentenced himto i ncarceration
in excess of the five years provided for by a secret agreenent; and
the trial court failed to advise himof his right to appeal.
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